

AMENDED IN SENATE AUGUST 4, 2008

AMENDED IN SENATE JULY 2, 2008

AMENDED IN SENATE JUNE 11, 2008

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MAY 6, 2008

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 1, 2008

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE—2007—08 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL

No. 2796

Introduced by Assembly Member Nava

February 22, 2008

An act to add Sections 8588.2 and 8657.5 to the Government Code, and to amend Section 1799.100 of the Health and Safety Code, relating to the Office of Emergency Services.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 2796, as amended, Nava. Office of Emergency Services: statewide registry.

The California Emergency Services Act authorizes the Office of Emergency Services to include private businesses and nonprofit organizations within its responsibilities to prepare the state for emergencies and disasters. The act provides certain registered volunteers and individuals impressed into service during a state of war emergency, a state of emergency, or a local emergency with specified legal immunities. Violation of the provisions of the act is punishable as a misdemeanor. *Existing law prohibits certain entities from being held civilly liable for civil damages alleged to have resulted from specified emergency medical services training.*

This bill would authorize the office to establish a statewide registry of private businesses and nonprofit organizations that are interested in donating, under certain conditions, services, goods, labor, equipment, resources, or dispensaries or other facilities to prepare the state for emergencies and disasters, and would impose certain duties on these entities in this regard. By making these entities subject to a criminal penalty for violation of the act, this bill would impose a state-mandated local program. This bill would relieve a private business or nonprofit organization included on the statewide registry from civil liability for a death, injury, illness, or other damage to a person or property caused by its donation of services, goods, labor, equipment, resources, or dispensaries or other facilities *during a declared state of war, state of emergency, or state of local emergency*, except for liability caused by its grossly negligent act or omission, or willful or wanton misconduct. *This bill would also prohibit a private business or nonprofit organization included on the statewide registry from being held civilly liable for civil damages alleged to have resulted from specified emergency medical services training.*

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act for a specified reason.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes.
 State-mandated local program: yes.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

- 1 SECTION 1. Section 8588.2 is added to the Government Code,
- 2 to read:
- 3 8588.2. (a) The Office of Emergency Services may establish
- 4 a statewide registry of private businesses and nonprofit
- 5 organizations that are interested in donating services, goods, labor,
- 6 equipment, resources, or dispensaries or other facilities to further
- 7 the purposes of Section 8588.1.
- 8 (b) If the Office of Emergency Services establishes a statewide
- 9 registry pursuant to subdivision (a), the office shall create and
- 10 implement protocols and procedures for inclusion onto the
- 11 statewide registry that ~~does do~~, but ~~is are~~ not limited to, all of the
- 12 following:

1 (1) ~~Establishes~~ *Establish* eligibility requirements for a private
2 business or nonprofit organization to be included on the statewide
3 registry.

4 (2) ~~Requires~~ *Require* the services, goods, labor, equipment,
5 resources, or dispensaries or other facilities donated by a private
6 business or nonprofit organization included on the statewide
7 registry to be provided at no cost to state governmental entities or
8 the victims of emergencies and disasters.

9 (3) ~~Requires~~ *Require* the services, goods, labor, equipment,
10 resources, or dispensaries or other facilities donated by a private
11 business or nonprofit organization included on the statewide
12 registry to be safely collected, maintained, and managed.

13 (4) ~~Requires~~ *Require* that federal, state, and local governmental
14 entities and nonprofit organizations that are engaged in assisting
15 communities prepare for, respond to, or recover from emergencies
16 and disasters have access to the statewide registry.

17 (c) A private business or nonprofit organization included on the
18 statewide registry shall reasonably determine all of the following:

19 (1) Donated services, goods, labor, equipment, resources, or
20 dispensaries or other facilities comply with all applicable federal
21 and state safety laws and licensing requirements.

22 (2) Donated services, goods, labor, equipment, resources, or
23 dispensaries or other facilities have not been altered, misbranded,
24 or stored under conditions contrary to the standards set forth under
25 federal or state laws or by the product manufacturer.

26 (3) Donated medicine shall be unopened, in tamper-resistant
27 packaging or modified unit dose containers that meet United States
28 Pharmacopeia standards, and show lot numbers and expiration
29 dates. Medicine that does not meet these standards shall not be
30 donated.

31 SEC. 2. Section 8657.5 is added to the Government Code, to
32 read:

33 8657.5. (a) (1) A private business included on the statewide
34 registry pursuant to Section 8588.2 that voluntarily and without
35 expectation and receipt of compensation donates services, goods,
36 labor, equipment, resources, or dispensaries or other facilities, in
37 compliance with Section 8588.2, during a declared state of war,
38 state of emergency, or state of local emergency, ~~or a training~~
39 ~~conducted by the Office of Emergency Services, a city, or a county~~
40 shall not be civilly liable for a death, injury, illness, or other

1 damage to a person or property caused by the private business’s
 2 donation of services, goods, labor, equipment, resources, or
 3 dispensaries or other facilities.

4 (2) *A private business included on the statewide registry that*
 5 *voluntarily and without expectation and receipt of compensation*
 6 *donates services, goods, labor, equipment, resources, or*
 7 *dispensaries or other facilities, in compliance with Section 8588.2,*
 8 *during an emergency medical services training program conducted*
 9 *by the Office of Emergency Services and a city, a county, or a city*
 10 *and county shall not be civilly liable for damages alleged to have*
 11 *resulted from those training programs, as described in Section*
 12 *1799.100 of the Health and Safety Code.*

13 (b) (1) A nonprofit organization included on the statewide
 14 registry pursuant to Section 8588.2 that voluntarily and without
 15 expectation and receipt of compensation from victims of
 16 emergencies and disasters donates services, goods, labor,
 17 equipment, resources, or dispensaries or other facilities, in
 18 compliance with Section 8588.2, during a declared state of war,
 19 state of emergency, or state of local emergency, ~~or a training~~
 20 ~~conducted by the Office of Emergency Services, a city, or a county~~
 21 ~~shall not be civilly liable~~ *emergency shall not be civilly liable* for
 22 a death, injury, illness, or other damage to a person or property
 23 caused by the nonprofit organization’s donation of services, goods,
 24 labor, equipment, resources, or dispensaries or other facilities.

25 (2) *A nonprofit organization included on the statewide registry*
 26 *that voluntarily and without expectation and receipt of*
 27 *compensation donates services, goods, labor, equipment, resources,*
 28 *or dispensaries or other facilities, in compliance with Section*
 29 *8588.2, during an emergency medical services training program*
 30 *conducted by the Office of Emergency Services and a city, a county,*
 31 *or a city and county, shall not be civilly liable for damages alleged*
 32 *to have resulted from those training programs, as described in*
 33 *Section 1799.100 of the Health and Safety Code.*

34 (c) A private business or nonprofit organization that
 35 discriminates against a victim of an emergency or disaster based
 36 on a protected classification under federal or state law shall not be
 37 entitled to the protections in subdivision (a) or (b).

38 (d) This section shall not relieve a private business or nonprofit
 39 organization from liability caused by its grossly negligent act or
 40 omission, or willful or wanton misconduct.

1 *SEC. 3. Section 1799.100 of the Health and Safety Code is*
2 *amended to read:*

3 1799.100. In order to encourage local agencies and other
4 organizations to train people in emergency medical services, no
5 local agency, entity of state or local government, *private business*
6 *or nonprofit organization included on the statewide registry that*
7 *voluntarily and without expectation and receipt of compensation*
8 *donates services, goods, labor, equipment, resources, or*
9 *dispensaries or other facilities, in compliance with Section 8588.2*
10 *of the Government Code, or other public or private organization*
11 *which sponsors, authorizes, supports, finances, or supervises the*
12 *training of people, or certifies those people, excluding physicians*
13 *and surgeons, registered nurses, and licensed vocational nurses,*
14 *as defined, in emergency medical services, shall be liable for any*
15 *civil damages alleged to result from those training programs.*

16 ~~SEC. 3.~~

17 *SEC. 4.* No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to
18 Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because
19 the only costs that may be incurred by a local agency or school
20 district will be incurred because this act creates a new crime or
21 infraction, eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penalty
22 for a crime or infraction, within the meaning of Section 17556 of
23 the Government Code, or changes the definition of a crime within
24 the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California
25 Constitution.